
Civil Service Commission – April 28, 2023  Page 1 of 2 

 

 

CIVIL SERVICE COMMISSION 

CITY HALL - COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 300 W. MAIN STREET 

FRIDAY, APRIL 28, 2023 AT 1:00 PM 

AGENDA 

CALL TO ORDER 

AGENDA ITEMS 

1. Minutes from the April 20, 2023, Civil Service Commission Meeting 

2. Consider and rule upon the appeals for test question #36 of the Fire Battalion Chief 

promotional examination administered on April 11, 2023 

3. Consider and rule upon the appeals for test question #76 of the Fire Battalion Chief 

promotional examination administered on April 11, 2023 

4. Consider and rule upon the appeals for test question #64 of the Fire Captain promotional 

examination administered on April 11, 2023 

5. Consider and rule upon the appeals for test question #79 of the Fire Captain promotional 

examination administered on April 11, 2023 

6. Consider and rule upon the appeals for test question #84 of the Fire Captain promotional 

examination administered on April 11, 2023 

7. Consider and rule upon the appeals for test question #20 of the Fire Driver promotional 

examination administered on April 12, 2023 

8. Consider and rule upon the appeals for test question #20 of the Fire Lieutenant promotional 

examination administered on April 12, 2023 

9. Consider and rule upon the appeals for test question #24 of the Fire Lieutenant promotional 

examination administered on April 12, 2023 

10. Consider and rule upon the appeals for test question #34 of the Fire Lieutenant promotional 

examination administered on April 12, 2023 

11. Consider and rule upon the appeals for test question #63 of the Fire Lieutenant promotional 

examination administered on April 12, 2023. 

12. Consider and rule upon the appeals for test question #73 of the Fire Lieutenant promotional 

examination administered on April 12, 2023 

13. Consider and Rule Upon the Appeals for Grading of the Lieutenant Promotional Exam for 

Taylor Rosier Administered on April 12, 2023 

1



Civil Service Commission – April 28, 2023  Page 2 of 2 

CITIZEN COMMENTS 

Citizens may speak during Citizen Comments for up to five minutes on any item not on the agenda by 

completing and submitting a speaker card. 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

The Civil Service Commission may conduct a closed session if needed in accordance with Chapter 143.053 

of the Texas Local Government Code to deliberate on an appeal of disciplinary suspension; and/or under 

Sections 551.071 and 551.074 of the Texas Government Code to discuss personnel matters and/or legal 

issues with a City Attorney on a matter in which the attorney has a duty to confidentially advise the client. 

ADJOURNMENT 

The Grand Prairie City Hall is accessible to people with disabilities. If you need assistance in participating 

in this meeting due to a disability as defined under the ADA, please call 972 237 8192 or email Lisa Norris 

at lnorris@gptx.org at least three (3) business days prior to the scheduled meeting to request an 

accommodation. 

Certification 

In accordance with Chapter 551, Subchapter C of the Government Code, V.T.C.A, the Civil Service 

Commission agenda was prepared and posted April 25, 2023 prior to 1:00 p.m. 

 

Lisa Norris, Human Resources Director 

 

2



Page 1 of 2 

 

 
CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE 

COMMUNICATION 

 

 

MEETING DATE: April 28, 2023 

PRESENTER: Lisa Norris, Civil Service Director 

TITLE: Minutes from the April 20, 2023, Civil Service Commission Meeting 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve 

  

 
The Civil Service Commission Meeting was held on April 20, 2023, at City Hall in the Council Chambers 

at 300 W. Main Street, Grand Prairie, Texas, 75050. 

 

Oliver Thompson called the meeting to order at 3:02 p.m. with Commissioners Rachel Mendoza and Reg 

Crump present.  

 

Also present were Lisa Norris, Civil Service Director; Euriah Brown and Michon Wynn, Human 

Resources Managers; and Mark Dempsey, Deputy City Attorney. 

 

The first item on the agenda was the approval of the minutes from the Civil Service Commission meeting 

held on January 25, 2023.   Commissioner Mendoza moved to approve the minutes, and Commissioner 

Crump seconded the motion.  The item passed unanimously.  

 

The next item on the agenda was to consider and approve an amendment to The City of Grand Prairie Fire 

Fighters and Police Officers Local Civil Service Rules and Regulations.  Language was added in section 

11.47 on page 42 relating to the exchange of witness and exhibit lists in the pre-hearing process to clarify 

that they may be provided to the Commission or to the Hearing Examiner as appropriate.  Ms. Norris 

explained the rule change and indicated that there was a copy of the summary of changes, a redlined 

version of the full rules and a clean version that they would sign.  She explained this is because a full 

version of the rule changes cannot be posted on the existing boards as there is not space.  The summary 

and red-lined versions are posted online so they can be viewed, and the clean version of the Local Rules 

becomes effective after the 7-day posting period has passed.  The Commission had no further question on 

the rule change.  Commissioner Crump moved to approve the rules as provided. Commissioner Mendoza 

seconded the motion. The item passed unanimously. 

 

The next item on the agenda was to designate providers qualified to complete Fire and Police Department 

Applicant Psychological appeals.  Ms. Norris explained that the list is the same as prior years, although 

she was hoping to add some others after checking with cities.  Only one more provider came in yesterday 

and therefore are not on the list provided.  Most cities utilize the same providers we have on the list.  As 

a result, this is the same list from 2018, but being signed today will demonstrate it remains current.  

Commissioner Mendoza motioned to approve the list as provided. Commissioner Crump seconded the 

motion. The item passed unanimously.   

3

Item 1.



Page 2 of 2 

 

The last item on the agenda was to elect the Chair and Vice Chair.  Commissioner Crump moved to elect 

Oliver Thompson as Chair and Rachel Mendoza as Vice Chair.    Ms. Mendoza asked if the Commission 

would allow a few comments prior to the vote, and then asked Mr. Dempsey the procedure for making a 

separate motion.  Mr. Dempsey confirmed a separate motion could be made, and motions would be 

considered in order.  Ms. Mendoza then moved to nominate herself as Chair and Commissioner Thompson 

as Vice-Chair.  Mr. Thompson indicated that if the floor was closed to nominations, he would entertain a 

motion accordingly.  Commissioner Crump moved to close the nomination process and Commissioner 

Mendoza seconded the motion.  This motion passed unanimously.   Ms. Mendoza then asked if she could 

share her qualifications, so in spite of her short tenure on this Commission, they would understand her 

background.  The Commission agreed.  Commissioner Mendoza indicated that she had attended every 

Fire Department appeal meeting since 2018 while she had worked at the City.  She also stated that in the 

City of Denton when she worked there, she also put together the Civil Service Commission meetings, 

Planning and Zoning meetings, and several others. She stated she is familiar with the Robert’s Rules of 

Order and how to properly run meetings based upon this. Some dialogue ensued on the order of 

considering nominations and how to do so.  Mr. Dempsey clarified they must be considered in the order 

made.    Commissioner Crump moved to elect Oliver as Chair and Rachel as Vice Chair. Oliver seconded 

the motion.  The item passed with a majority vote of Mr. Thompson and Mr. Crump for, and Ms. Mendoza 

against.  Since this motion passed with a majority vote and the appointments were thereby confirmed in a 

joint motion, Mr. Dempsey indicated Ms. Mendoza’s subsequent nomination of herself for Chair could 

no longer be considered and was null.   

 

With no other discussion, the meeting was adjourned at 3:22 p.m. 

 

 

 

___________________________________   ____________________________________ 

Commissioner, Oliver Thompson    Commissioner, Reg Crump 

 

___________________________________   ____________________________________ 

Commissioner, Rachel Mendoza    Civil Service Director, Lisa Norris 

 

4

Item 1.



Page 1 of 2 

 

 
CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE 

COMMUNICATION 

 

 

MEETING DATE: 04/28/2023 

PRESENTER: Lisa Norris, Civil Service Director 

TITLE: Consider and rule upon the appeals for test question #36 of the Fire 

Battalion Chief promotional examination administered on April 11, 

2023 

APPELLANT: Randal Singleton and John Stevenson 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Uphold or Deny the appeal and Modify the answer key if appropriate 

  

QUESTION: 

 

36. Leaders should overcommunicate when the information is: 

1. Time Sensitive 

2. To correct any inaccuracies 

3. Involving safety to your crew, team, or customer 

4. To reinforce your all in and on task with the team 

 

A. Only statements 1, 2, and 3 

B. Only statements 1, 3 and 4 

C. Only statements 2, 3, and 4 

D. Statements 1, 2, 3, and 4 

Keyed Answer: D 

RESOURCE: 

 

No Exceptions Leadership: The Leadership Handbook, Fire Engineering, 2016; Chapter 2, Page 7 

ALLOCATION OF ANSWERS: 

A-0; B-3; C-0; D-1 

 

 

 

5

Item 2.



Page 2 of 2 

GROUNDS OF APPEAL & RELIEF SOUGHT: 

 

Appellant Grounds of Appeal Relief Sought 

Singleton 
Stevenson 

 

The keyed answer is not correct. 

Another answer is correct and it 

should be allowed for credit 

instead of the keyed answer. 

Uphold the appeal and overrule the answer 

key to reflect answer “B” as correct. 

VENDOR RESPONSE: 

 

Instructions:  

 

Questions 35 through 46 were taken from No Exceptions Leadership: The Leadership Handbook, 

Fire Engineering, 2016.  ISBN-13: 978-1541252868.  Select the best answer for questions 35 

through 46 based solely upon the material presented in this source. 

 

Pertinent Text:  Pg. 7  

 

Over communicate when the information is: 

o Time sensitive 

o Involves safety of your crew, team or customer 

o The information needed is long and complicated 

o When history dictates the need for added conversations and direction 

o Just to make sure everyone is on the same page 

o To correct any accuracies 

o To reinforce your all in and on task with the team 

 

The author obviously made a typo in writing accuracies instead of “Inaccuracies”.  The test writer also 

misread the text and wrote inaccuracies into the question, knowing that was obviously what the author 

meant. 

 

As written, answer B is the only correct answer.  That being said, because the text on page 7 was written 

incorrectly and provided the wrong information, I would recommend removing the question from the 

exam. 

 

 

6

Item 2.



7

Item 2.



8

Item 2.



9

Item 2.



Page 1 of 2 

 

 
CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE 

COMMUNICATION 

 

 

MEETING DATE: 04/28/2023 

PRESENTER: Lisa Norris, Civil Service Director 

TITLE: Consider and rule upon the appeals for test question #76 of the Fire 

Battalion Chief promotional examination administered on April 11, 

2023 

APPELLANT: Randal Singleton 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Uphold or Deny the appeal and Modify the answer key if appropriate 

  

QUESTION: 

 

76. Wood-frame buildings also have wooden floor-joist systems. In a balloon construction, the joist 

on the foundation will be nailed to the______________.  

A. studs 

B. exterior side wall 

C. floor joist 

D. corbel 

Keyed Answer: B 

RESOURCE: 

 

Managing Major Fires, Fire Engineering Books and Videos, 2001; Chapter 7, Page 70 

ALLOCATION OF ANSWERS: 

A-2; B-2; C-0; D-0 

GROUNDS OF APPEAL: 

Another answer is correct in addition to the keyed answer. 

RELIEF SOUGHT: 

Uphold the appeal and overrule the answer key to reflect answers “A” and “B” as correct. 

 

 

10

Item 3.



Page 2 of 2 

VENDOR RESPONSE: 

 

Instructions:  

 

Questions 69 through 85 were taken from Managing Major Fires, Fire Engineering Books and 

Videos, 2001.  ISBN-13: 978-0912212968.  Select the best answer for questions 69 through 85 

based solely upon the material presented in this source. 

 

 

Pertinent Text:  Pg. 70-71  

 

Wood-frame buildings also have wooden floor-joist systems.  In a balloon construction, the joist on the 

foundation will be nailed to the exterior side wall.  The joists rest directly on the sill (the bottom portion 

of the balloon-frame exterior wall, as opposed to the sill in a platform frame, which rests on top of the 

foundation) and are nailed to the studs.  On the upper floors, the joists rest on a ribbon and are again 

nailed to the studs. 

 

 

The author is stating that “on the upper floors (of a platform framed structure), the joists now rest on a 

ribbon (instead of a sill like it does in the lower floors) and are again nailed to the studs”.  (just like they 

are on the lower floors). 

 

The author never makes any reference to the fact that joists in balloon construction are nailed to studs.  

In the referenced text, he is simply stating the differences between balloon frame and platform frame 

construction and how the lower and upper floors of platform framing both nail joists to the studs. 

 

The question is written verbatim from the text. 

 

The only correct answer is B.   

 

 

11

Item 3.



12

Item 3.



Managing Major Fires 

ings that were originally designed as apartment buildings have flat roofs. The cockloft area 
will contain the last set of ceiling joists and the rafters above them. The space between may 
be filled with insulation, but this isn't likely. Some buildings have a scuttle hole to the cockloft 
and others don't. 

The final exterior weatherproof surface, for either type of building, will be of tarpaper; 
tar and gravel; or of a newer membrane roof over either wooden planks or plywood. If you 

find plywood, suspect that alterations have taken place on the existing roof 

Buildings of true ordinary construction have their upper floors tied into either joist pock
ets or a corbel. The floors are supported by 2 X 8 or larger wooden joists. These will general

ly run parallel to the shortest exterior walls-normally the front and back walls. This would 

indicate that the side walls, as well as any interior walls that run perpendicular to the joists, 
are load-bearing walls. On top of the joists will be old wooden floorboards. AB with roofs, the 

presence of plywood in the floor indicates renovation. The set of joists that support the first 

floor will also be set into pockets; otherwise, they'll be resting on a foundation. 
Wood-frame buildings also have wooden floor-joist systems. In balloon construction, 

the joist on the foundation will be nailed to the exterior side wall. The joists rest directly 

An eight room Apartment Building. Do you think this building was originally designed as an eight

room Apartment Building? Credit Coleman

70 

13

Item 3.



14

Item 3.



Page 1 of 2 

 

 
CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE 

COMMUNICATION 

 

 

MEETING DATE: 04/28/2023 

PRESENTER: Lisa Norris, Civil Service Director 

TITLE: Consider and rule upon the appeals for test question #64 of the Fire 

Captain promotional examination administered on April 11, 2023 

APPELLANT: Benjamin Morris 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Uphold or Deny the appeal and Modify the answer key if appropriate 

  

QUESTION: 

 

64. Which of the following statements regarding venting around exposures and horizontal venting 

for extinguishment is false? 

A. Due to the possibility of auto exposure, never vent when directly below open 

windows, within porches/overhangs, or when combustible siding is present.  

B. Ensure the fire attack is underway prior to horizontally venting for extinguishment. 

C. When breaking glass, be sure to start with an upper corner of the window, as the 

topmost portion is subjected to the highest heat and may be weakened. 

D. Venting opposite the handline and minimizing the time between the creation of that 

opening and fire suppression capitalizes on the additional air entrainment and 

subsequent exhaust efficiency. 

Keyed Answer: A 

RESOURCE: 

 

Coordinating Ventilation: Supporting Extinguishment and Survivability, Fire Engineering Books; 

Chapter 7, Page 90-93 

ALLOCATION OF ANSWERS: 

A-2; B-5; C-0; D-1 

GROUNDS OF APPEAL: 

Another answer is correct in addition to the keyed answer. 

 

15

Item 4.



Page 2 of 2 

RELIEF SOUGHT: 

Uphold the appeal and overrule the answer key to reflect answers “A” and “B” as correct. 

VENDOR RESPONSE: 

 

Instructions:  

 

Questions 52 through 68 were taken from Coordinating Ventilation: Supporting Extinguishment 

and Survivability, Fire Engineering Books.  ISBN-13: 978-1593704377.  Select the best answer for 

questions 52 through 68 based solely upon the material presented in this source. 

 

Pertinent Text:  Pg. 90-93  

 

There is no argument that answer A is a false statement and therefore the correct answer. 

 

The argument is whether statement B, which is taken from page 92 as shown below, is a correct 

statement. 

 

     Guideline 6 

   Vent for Extinguishment—Horizontal 

 Ensure fire attack is underway prior to horizontally venting for extinguishment 

 

Pages 92-94 are dedicated to enforcing this statement.  The whole premise is to enforce the fact that 

horizontal ventilation for extinguishment is very risky and dangerous.  The author states that “horizontal 

ventilation must not occur until the engine company is in position to successfully advance in on the 

fire”.  “Because the grace period prior to water application is highly variable according to the conditions 

present, its potential benefits can be fleeting, making it extremely challenging to accurately predict the 

time frame.  It is most prudent, therefore, to initiate ventilation along with the onset of fire attack.”  --- 

The author is trying to emphasize the point that fire attack must be underway prior to horizontal 

ventilation. 

 

The key term that is possibly being misunderstood is fire attack.  This is not simply putting the “wet 

stuff on the red stuff”.  Fire attack is everything involved in getting to the point of being able to 

apply water to the fire.  On page 94, the author tells a story how he stretched a dry line to the 3rd floor 

apartment.  He looked in the door and saw very little flame.  He called for the engine to charge his line, 

but before he had water, a firefighter vented the window from outside.  Because horizontal ventilation 

was initiated prior to all aspects of “fire attack” being fully in place, the fire became very intense and 

dangerous.  

  

The whole purpose of Guideline 6 is to emphasize that all elements of “Fire Attack” must be in place 

prior to horizontally venting for extinguishment. 

 

Statement B is a true statement. 

 

Statement “A” is the only false statement and therefore the only correct answer. 

 

 

16

Item 4.



17

Item 4.



18

Item 4.



19

Item 4.



20

Item 4.



21

Item 4.



22

Item 4.



Page 1 of 2 

 

 
CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE 

COMMUNICATION 

 

 

MEETING DATE: 04/28/2023 

PRESENTER: Lisa Norris, Civil Service Director 

TITLE: Consider and rule upon the appeals for test question #79 of the Fire 

Captain promotional examination administered on April 11, 2023 

APPELLANT: Jason Payne 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Uphold or Deny the appeal and Modify the answer key if appropriate 

  

QUESTION: 

 

79. Which of the following are reasons emergency generators sometimes fail? 

1. Sprinkler system activation 

2. Poor fuel quality 

3. Total power transfer happens too fast 

4. Bad transfer activities 

5. Dead batteries 

 

A. Only statements 1, 2, 3, and 5 

B. Only statements 2, 3, 4, and 5 

C. Only statements 2, 4, and 5 

D. Statements 1, 2, 3, 4, and 5 

Keyed Answer: B 

RESOURCE: 

 

Firefighters and Highrises: 2nd Edition, Outskirts Press, 2015; Chapter 11, Page 144 

ALLOCATION OF ANSWERS: 

A-1; B-1; C-6; D-0 

GROUNDS OF APPEAL: 

Another answer is correct in addition to the keyed answer. 

  

23

Item 5.



Page 2 of 2 

RELIEF SOUGHT: 

Uphold the appeal and overrule the answer key to reflect answers “B” and “C” as correct. 

VENDOR RESPONSE: 

 

Instructions:  

 

Questions 69 through 85 were taken from Firefighters and Highrises: 2nd Edition, Outskirts Press, 

2015.  ISBN-13: 978-1478759423.  Select the best answer for questions 69 through 85 based solely 

upon the material presented in this source. 

 

Pertinent Text:  Pg. 144  

 

The test taker argues that statement 3 does not cause generators to sometimes fail.  The very first reason 

for generator failure described on page 144 pertains to total power transfer happening too fast.  The 

author states “For a variety of reasons, generators fail from time to time. When primary power is lost 

and a generator starts up, the automatic power transfer to various components should be sequential 

rather than all at once.  If the total power transfer happens too fast, there will be a sudden voltage 

drop, which will throw breakers and deprive critical equipment of power”.    

 

The author definitely feels that total power transfer happening too fast is a cause for generator failure. 

You can tell because he starts the next paragraph with the following: “Another common cause of 

generator failure is…”.   

 

This proves that statement 3 is a common cause of generator failure as well as statements 2, 4, and 

5. 

 

There seems to be no argument from the test taker that statements 2, 4, and 5 are causes of generator 

failure; therefore, statements 2, 3, 4, and 5 are all common causes of generator failure. 

 

The question asks “Which of the following are reasons emergency generators fail?”  The correct answer 

must include all of the causes of generator failure. 

 

Answer B is the only correct answer. 

 

 

24

Item 5.



25

Item 5.



26

Item 5.



Page 1 of 2 

 

 
CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE 

COMMUNICATION 

 

 

MEETING DATE: 04/28/2023 

PRESENTER: Lisa Norris, Civil Service Director 

TITLE: Consider and rule upon the appeals for test question #84 of the Fire 

Captain promotional examination administered on April 11, 2023 

APPELLANT: Jason Payne 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Uphold or Deny the appeal and Modify the answer key if appropriate 

  

QUESTION: 

 

84. Throughout this book, there have been many mentions of the importance of clearing the attack 

stairwell of civilians before opening the door to the fire floor. Whose responsibility is it to verify 

that the attack stairwell is clear of evacuees? 

A. Initial Attack Team   

B. Fire Investigation Team (FIT) 

C. Rapid Ascent Team (RAT) 

D. Rapid Intervention Team (RIT) 

Keyed Answer: C 

RESOURCE: 

 

Firefighters and Highrises: 2nd Edition, Outskirts Press, 2015; Chapter 11, Page 212 

ALLOCATION OF ANSWERS: 

A-2; B-0; C-6; D-0 

GROUNDS OF APPEAL: 

Another answer is correct in addition to the keyed answer. 

RELIEF SOUGHT: 

Uphold the appeal and overrule the answer key to reflect answers “A” and “C” as correct. 

 

 

27

Item 6.



Page 2 of 2 

VENDOR RESPONSE: 

 

Instructions:  

 

Questions 69 through 85 were taken from Firefighters and Highrises: 2nd Edition, Outskirts Press, 

2015.  ISBN-13: 978-1478759423.  Select the best answer for questions 69 through 85 based solely 

upon the material presented in this source. 

 

Pertinent Text:  Pg. 212  

 

The test taker argues that the book does not state that it is the responsibility of the Rapid Ascent Team 

(RAT) to clear the attack stairwell.  On page 212 it states “the Rapid Ascent Team is basically a team of 

firefighters sent to the top of a building early in an incident to descend through the attack stairwell, 

moving evacuees out of it before the fire floor door is opened.”  The next paragraph states “Their sole 

purpose should be to make one swift pass through the attack stairwell to clear it of evacuees.  After that, 

frequent PA announcements can be relied on to keep people out of it”. 

 

Very simply put, if firefighters are given the assignment of Rapid Ascent Team (RAT), their sole job is 

to verify that the attack stairwell is clear of evacuees, it is their responsibility.  No one on a fire-scene 

“acts” without being given orders. 

   

The test taker argues that Answer A is also a correct answer.   

 

Pg. 199 says “…it should be cleared and is best verified by firefighters”.---aka. Rapid Ascent Team 

Pg. 69 says “In addition to making announcements, firefighters must physically clear the attack 

stairwell of  occupants before fire attack begins”.     

Note:  These “firefighters” have been assigned to Rapid Ascent Team by the Incident Commander.  

These actions are not taken by the Initial Attack Team.   

 

Pg. 225 -- Rules to Live By 

 “Never attack the fire from a stairwell that may have people in it. Every effort must be made to 

clear  occupants from the attack stairwell before the door is opened to attack the fire.”—The Initial 

Attack  Team will not begin fire attack until they hear from the Rapid Ascent Team that the attack 

stairwell is  clear of evacuees. 

 

The crew assigned as Initial Attack Team has the job of locating, confining, and extinguishing the fire 

which does not include going to the top of the structure and clearing the entire attack stairwell of 

evacuees.  If they choose to do that, there will be no one doing the Initial Attack Team assignment.  

 

Answer A is not correct. 

  

Answer C: Rapid Ascent Team is the only correct answer. 

 

 

 

28

Item 6.



29

Item 6.



30

Item 6.



31

Item 6.



32

Item 6.



33

Item 6.



Page 1 of 2 

 

 
CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE 

COMMUNICATION 

 

 

MEETING DATE: 04/28/2023 

PRESENTER: Lisa Norris, Civil Service Director 

TITLE: Consider and rule upon the appeals for test question #20 of the Fire 

Driver promotional examination administered on April 12, 2023 

APPELLANT: Andrew Grondin 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Uphold or Deny the appeal and Modify the answer key if appropriate 

  

 

QUESTION: 

 

20. Five steps are important in creating a culture of safety. First, the organization must build trust 

among its members. Which of the following statements is not one of the remaining four steps in 

creating a culture of safety? 

A. The organization must demonstrate a willingness to reduce error in the system.   

B. The organization must adopt and enforce a punitive policy toward errors.   

C. The organization must provide training in error avoidance, detection, and management 

strategies for the crews.   

D. The organization should provide training in evaluation and reinforcing error avoidance, 

detection, and avoidance.   
 

Keyed Answer: B 

RESOURCE: 

 

Crew Resource Management for the Fire Service, Fire Engineering Books, 2003; Chapter 2, Page 

36-37 

ALLOCATION OF ANSWERS: 

A-3; B-32; C-2; D-6 

GROUNDS OF APPEAL: 

Another answer is also correct, in addition, to the keyed answer. Both answers should be allowed for 

credit. 
 

34

Item 7.



Page 2 of 2 

RELIEF SOUGHT: 

Uphold the appeal and overrule the answer key to reflect answers “B” and “D” as correct. 

VENDOR RESPONSE: 

 

Instructions:  

 

Questions 18 through 34 were taken from Crew Resource Management for the Fire Service, Fire 

Engineering Books, 2003.  ISBN-13: 978-1593700065.  Select the best answer for questions 18 

through 34 based solely upon the material presented in this source. 

 

Pertinent Text:  Pg. 38  

 

There is no argument that B is the correct answer. 

 

The test taker argues that answer D is also correct because of a typo.  Answer D comes from page 38 

where it states “The organization should provide training in evaluation and reinforcing error avoidance, 

detection, and management”.  Leaving the word “management” off the end of the sentence does not 

make the statement incorrect.  Everything mentioned in answer D are parts of the four steps in creating a 

culture of safety, which is exactly what the question is looking for.  

 

The question asks “Which of the following statements is not one of the remaining four steps in creating 

a culture of safety?”  

Answers A, C, and D are the remaining four steps in creating a culture of safety.  

 

Only answer B is not one of the four steps in creating a culture of safety. 

 

The only correct answer to question #20 is answer B 

 

 

35

Item 7.



36

Item 7.



37

Item 7.

Lnorris
Highlight

Lnorris
Highlight

Lnorris
Highlight

Lnorris
Highlight



38

Item 7.

Lnorris
Highlight

Lnorris
Highlight

Lnorris
Highlight

Lnorris
Highlight



39

Item 7.

Lnorris
Highlight

Lnorris
Highlight



Page 1 of 2 

 

 
CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE 

COMMUNICATION 

 

 

MEETING DATE: 04/28/2023 

PRESENTER: Lisa Norris, Civil Service Director 

TITLE: Consider and rule upon the appeals for test question #20 of the Fire 

Lieutenant promotional examination administered on April 12, 2023 

APPELLANT: Chris Rodgers 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Uphold or Deny the appeal and Modify the answer key if appropriate 

  

QUESTION: 

 

20. Which of the following statements regarding trusses are correct? 

1. The triangular is the most common type of truss used to form a peaked roof. 

2. The simplest form of a truss is a planar truss 

3. The top chord of a parallel truss is loaded in tension and the bottom chord is in 

compression. 

4. The two most common trusses encountered at structure fires are the bowstring truss 

and the cathedral arch truss. 

 

A. Only statements 1 and 2 

B. Only statements 1, 3 and 4 

C. Only statements 1, 2 and 3 

D. Statements 1, 2, 3, and 4 

Keyed Answer: A 

RESOURCE: 

The Art of Reading Buildings, Fire Engineering Books, 2015; Chapter 3, Page 35 

ALLOCATION OF ANSWERS: 

A-13; B-0; C-2; D-0 

 

 

40

Item 8.



Page 2 of 2 

GROUNDS OF APPEAL: 

The keyed answer is not correct. Another answer is correct and it should be allowed for credit 

instead of the keyed answer.  

RELIEF SOUGHT: 

Uphold the appeal and overrule the answer key to reflect “C” as the correct answer.  

VENDOR RESPONSE: 

Instructions:  

 

Questions 18 through 34 were taken from The Art of Reading Buildings, Fire Engineering Books, 

2015.  ISBN-13: 978-1593703424.  Select the best answer for questions 18 through 34 based solely 

upon the material presented in this source. 

 

Pertinent Text:  Pg. 35  

 

The question is looking for correct statements regarding trusses.  Statements 1 and 2 are written 

verbatim from the text on page 35. 

 

Statements 3 and 4 were purposely written as incorrect statements. The correct version of statement #3 

is located in the last paragraph of page 35. 

 

The correct version of statement #4 comes from the bottom statement on page 36. 

 

The test taker argues that having the word “most” in statement #4 alters the significance of the 

statement.  The word “most” is irrelevant to the statement because it is a false statement either way. 

 

The only correct answer to question #20 is answer A.   – Only statements 1 and 2 

 

 

 

41

Item 8.



42

Item 8.



43

Item 8.



44

Item 8.



Page 1 of 2 

 

 
CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE 

COMMUNICATION 

 

 

MEETING DATE: 04/28/2023 

PRESENTER: Lisa Norris, Civil Service Director 

TITLE: Consider and rule upon the appeals for test question #24 of the Fire 

Lieutenant promotional examination administered on April 12, 2023 

APPELLANT: Karim Allen 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Uphold or Deny the appeal and Modify the answer key if appropriate 

  

QUESTION: 

 

24. Floor joists can be supported by which of the following? 

1. Joist Pockets 

2. Ledger/ribbon boards 

3. Headers 

4. Metal hangers 

 

A. Only statements 1, 2, and 4 

B. Only statements 2, 3 and 4 

C. Only statements 2 and 4 

D. Statements 1, 2, 3, and 4 

Keyed Answer: A 

RESOURCE: 

The Art of Reading Buildings, Fire Engineering Books, 2015; Chapter 7, Page 149 

ALLOCATION OF ANSWERS: 

A-10; B-1; C-2; D-2 

GROUNDS OF APPEAL: 

Another answer is correct, in addition, to the keyed answer. Both answers should be allowed for 

credit. 

45

Item 9.



Page 2 of 2 

RELIEF SOUGHT: 

Uphold the appeal and overrule the answer key to reflect answers “A” and “C” as correct.  

VENDOR RESPONSE: 

Instructions:  

 

Questions 18 through 34 were taken from The Art of Reading Buildings, Fire Engineering Books, 

2015.  ISBN-13: 978-1593703424.  Select the best answer for questions 18 through 34 based solely 

upon the material presented in this source. 

 

Pertinent Text:  Pg. 149 

 

The question is taken from the Quick Summary on page 149 and the statements 1, 2, and 4 are verbatim 

from the text.  

The correct answer is A.--- Only statements 1, 2, and 4 

 

The test taker is arguing that “joist pockets” are called other names in the text.  Figure 3-13 is referring 

to the insertion of wood floor beams into gravity wall pockets cut into a masonry wall.  On page 147 it 

explains that “Prior to the 1940’s, dimensional joists were anchored by inserting their ends into pockets 

or cavities in unreinforced masonry construction or resting on ribbon boards in balloon frame 

construction”.  The point being, terminology changes over time.  In the 1940’s they were called pockets 

or cavities and in modern construction, they are called joist pockets.  It makes sense that the author uses 

the term “joist pockets” since he is asking how you support a joist. 

 

The test taker insinuates that I was trying to trick the test takers into putting down the wrong answer.  I 

write every question with two purposes: to educate and to make each question as fair as possible.   

 

The correct answer to question #24 is answer A-- Only statements 1, 2, and 4 

 

 

46

Item 9.



47

Item 9.



48

Item 9.



49

Item 9.



Page 1 of 2 

 

 
CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE 

COMMUNICATION 

 

 

MEETING DATE: 04/28/2023 

PRESENTER: Lisa Norris, Civil Service Director 

TITLE: Consider and rule upon the appeals for test question #34 of the Fire 

Lieutenant promotional examination administered on April 12, 2023 

APPELLANT: Alan Schroeder 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Uphold or Deny the appeal and Modify the answer key if appropriate 

  

QUESTION: 

 

34. When at a fire in a single-story public storage facility constructed of lightweight metal frame 

construction with plywood materials and/or corrugated metal siding, the primary hazard is 

______________.   

 

A. the possibility of getting locked in a self-locking storage unit  

B. rapid structural collapse  

C. the variety of unknown contents within the storage units  

D. horizontal flame spread through the common attic  

Keyed Answer: C 

RESOURCE: 

 

The Art of Reading Buildings, Fire Engineering Books, 2015; Chapter 11, Page 355-356 

ALLOCATION OF ANSWERS: 

A-0; B-3; C-10; D-2 

GROUNDS OF APPEAL: 

Another answer is correct in addition to the keyed answer. 

RELIEF SOUGHT: 

Uphold the appeal and overrule the answer key to reflect answers “C” and “D” as correct. 

 

50

Item 10.



Page 2 of 2 

VENDOR RESPONSE: 

 

Instructions:  

 

Questions 18 through 34 were taken from The Art of Reading Buildings, Fire Engineering Books, 

2015.  ISBN-13: 978-1593703424.  Select the best answer for questions 18 through 34 based solely 

upon the material presented in this source. 

 

 

Pertinent Text:  Pg. 355-356  

 

Page 356:     SPECIFIC HAZARDS 

 The primary hazard comes from the variety of unknown contents that can vary widely, 

including flammable materials, hazardous materials, ammunition, and anything else that 

renters would want to store in a secure location.  Illegal disposal of chemicals and waste 

has been found in storage units. 

 

The author mentions other tactical concerns and hazards, but he very clearly states that he feels the 

primary hazard is the variety of unknown contents within the storage units. 

 

The question is specifically asking for the primary hazard. 

 

The only correct answer for question #34 is answer “C”. — the variety of unknown contents 

within the storage units 

 

 

 

51

Item 10.



52

Item 10.



53

Item 10.



54

Item 10.



Page 1 of 2 

 

 
CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE 

COMMUNICATION 

 

 

MEETING DATE: 04/28/2023 

PRESENTER: Lisa Norris, Civil Service Director 

TITLE: Consider and rule upon the appeals for test question #63 of the Fire 

Lieutenant promotional examination administered on April 12, 2023. 

APPELLANT: Chris Rodgers (active appeal); and Karim Allen (rescinded appeal) 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Uphold or Deny the appeal and Modify the answer key if appropriate 

  

Karim Allen filed, and then subsequently rescinded, an appeal on this question, but it is included in this 

item for full transparency.  Only consideration by the Commission is needed on Chris Rodgers appeal 

which is below.  

QUESTION: 

 

63. Of the following “Basic Attack Rules of Thumb”, which of the following statements is false? 

A. Generally, a hose stream will put out all the fire it can reach in 30 to 60 seconds.  

B. When you encounter multiple fires on the same floor, you must decide the location from 

which the line will be taken in. Work toward the biggest area of involvement first.  

C. Attack from the uninvolved area toward the area of involvement.  

D. Always attack the lowest fire in a structure first, then move upward. (ex. Extinguish a 

basement fire before you move to first floor.)  
 

Keyed Answer: D 

RESOURCE: 

 

Incident Management for the Street-Smart Fire Officer, 2nd edition; Chapter 10, Page 110-111 

ALLOCATION OF ANSWERS: 

A-5; B-2; C-1; D-7 

GROUNDS OF APPEAL: 

The question is faulty because there is no correct answer among the choices. The question should be 

eliminated. 

RELIEF SOUGHT: 

55

Item 11.



Page 2 of 2 

Uphold the appeal and eliminate the question. 

 

VENDOR RESPONSE: 

 

Instructions:  

 

Questions 52 through 68 were taken from Incident Management for the Street-Smart Fire Officer, 

2nd ed.  ISBN-13: 978-1593701505.  Select the best answer for questions 52 through 68 based solely 

upon the material presented in this source. 

 

Pertinent Text:  Pg. 110-111 

 

Statements A, B, and C are all verbatim from pages 110 and 111.  They are all true statements. 

 

The argument is that there are instances where statement “D” could be true.  Yes, in specific instances, 

this is definitely what you would want to do.  But, as the text points out, it is not always the case.  The 

example given on page 111 states “The one area of concern here is a fire where the basement and the 

floor above are both involved. I don’t recommend taking a hoseline down to fight a basement fire unless 

a backup line is in the stairway to the basement to ensure that a way out is always available”.   In 

another scenario, you may have to extinguish a small fire on the floor above just to be able to get down 

to the basement fire. 

 

Statement D is a false statement.  It states “Always attack the lowest fire in a structure first, then move 

upward”. 

 

There are many examples, including the one given on Pg. 111, that demonstrate you do not always 

attack the lowest fire in a structure first. 

 

The only correct answer for question #63 is answer “D”.  

 

56

Item 11.



57

Item 11.



58

Item 11.



59

Item 11.



60

Item 11.



Page 1 of 2 

 

 
CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE 

COMMUNICATION 

 

 

MEETING DATE: 04/28/2023 

PRESENTER: Lisa Norris, Civil Service Director 

TITLE: Consider and rule upon the appeals for test question #73 of the Fire 

Lieutenant promotional examination administered on April 12, 2023 

APPELLANT: Brian Gregory 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Uphold or Deny the appeal and Modify the answer key if appropriate 

  

QUESTION: 

 

73. There are several built-in weaknesses to modular construction that firefighters must be aware of 

in order to understand how fire spreads and develop appropriate strategies and tactics. Which of 

the following are examples of these built-in weaknesses? 

1. There are built-in access points for the crane to lift the modules into place which provide an 

avenue for fire spread. 

2. Fire can spread due to ceiling adhesive failure. 

3. The construction type results in a sizeable void between the first-floor ceiling and the second-

floor sub-flooring materials. 

4. The builder hires the inspector and only the following inspections are completed at the 

homesite: foundation, set, wiring and plumbing final only, and a finish inspection. 

 

A. Only statements 1, 2, and 3 

B. Only statements 2 and 3 

C. Only statements 1, 3, and 4 

D. Statements 1, 2, 3, and 4 

Keyed Answer: D 

RESOURCE: 

 

House Fires, Fire Engineering Books, 2019; Chapter 2, Page 37-40 

ALLOCATION OF ANSWERS: 

A-5; B-1; C-1; D-8 

GROUNDS OF APPEAL: 

61

Item 12.



Page 2 of 2 

The keyed answer is not correct. Another answer is correct and it should be allowed for credit 

instead of the keyed answer. 

RELIEF SOUGHT: 

Uphold the appeal and overrule the answer key to reflect “A” as the correct answer. 

VENDOR RESPONSE: 

 

Instructions:  

 

Questions 69 through 85 were taken from House Fires, Fire Engineering Books, 2019.  ISBN-13: 

978-1593704124.  Select the best answer for questions 69 through 85 based solely upon the 

material presented in this source. 

 

Pertinent Text:  Pg. 37-40  

 

There is no argument that statements 1, 2, and 3 are correct. 

 

The argument is whether statement 4 is a correct statement.  The text on page 41 states “For modular 

construction, only the following inspections are completed at the homesite: foundation, set, wiring, and 

plumbing final only, and a finish inspection”. 

 

The difference between the statement from page 41 and statement #4 is “The builder hires the 

inspector”.  The book does not state that the builder hires the inspector for inspections conducted at the 

homesite.   

 

Since the rest of statement 4 is verbatim from the book and due to not being able to prove that statement 

4 is correct or false, I recommend the following: 

 

I recommend that both answers A and D be accepted as correct answers. 

 

 

 

62

Item 12.



63

Item 12.



64

Item 12.



65

Item 12.



66

Item 12.



67

Item 12.



68

Item 12.



69

Item 12.



Page 1 of 2 

 

 
CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE 

COMMUNICATION 

 

 

MEETING DATE: 04/28/2023 

PRESENTER: Lisa Norris, Civil Service Director 

TITLE: Consider and Rule Upon the Appeals for Grading of the Lieutenant 

Promotional Exam for Taylor Rosier Administered on April 12, 2023 

APPELLANT: Fire Engineer Taylor Rosier 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Uphold or Deny the Appeal 

  

SUMMARY:  

On April 12, 2023, the Lieutenant promotional examination was administered to qualified fire 

personnel.  Immediately following the exam, the exams were scored in the presence of those 

wishing to observe.   

The exam answer sheet was in the form of a scantron.  The machine used to read the scantron was 

the same machine which was used to score all four of the Fire Department promotional exams 

which were scheduled for April 11, 2023 and April 12, 2023 (70 exams total).  Prior to being used 

to grade the exams, the machine was calibrated and tested to confirm it was functioning properly.  

There were no incidents when the exams were being graded by the machine. 

The following day each person’s promotional examination and answers, the examination grading, 

and the source material for the examination were made available to the candidates to review.  

Although the established practice is to provide candidates with a copy of their promotional 

examination and answers for review, candidates who came to view their exams on or before 

approximately 9:00 a.m. on April 14, 2023 were inadvertently provided their original exam 

scantrons to review.  Copies of the original scantrons were not made prior to the originals being 

provided to the candidates.  The review of the exams occurred in a room which was not equipped 

with a video recording device.  During the review, normally a Human Resources staff member is 

present in the room.  There was a brief moment Arselia had to step out to catch Euriah, but she 

asked a person to stand at the window on the outside of the room looking in and returned quickly.  

While staff members are in the room, they cannot attest that their eyes were focused on a particular 

candidate at all times. 

On April 14, 2023, at 8:00 a.m. Fire Engineer Rosier came to review his exam.  Initially, he was 

the only person reviewing the exam at that time, and he was in the room alone with Human 

Resources staff member Arselia Fuentes.  At approximately 8:06 a.m., other members of the fire 

department arrived to review their exams.  Shortly after the arrival of other fire personnel, Fire 

70

Item 13.



Page 2 of 2 

Engineer Rosier stated that his exam had been scored incorrectly in that he had selected the correct 

answers for questions 58 and 62, but they were scored as being incorrect.   

After receiving the scantron back from Fire Engineer Rosier, Human Resources staff reviewed the 

scantron and it showed the correct answers for questions 58 and 62 were shaded in similar to all 

other answers selected.   

The Civil Service Director was notified of the grading process prior to and during the test, and the 

issue identified by Rosier during review. The grading was performed electronically by submitting 

each scantron through the calibrated machine.  The grading which was performed by the Scantron 

on the date of the exam indicated Fire Engineer Rosier had left questions 58 and 62 blank, and 

therefore marked them incorrect.  There was no indication from the machine’s results that any 

answer had been selected at the time of the initial grading.  However, the correct answers for both 

questions were now clearly reflected on the scantron.  Fire Engineer Rosier requested that he be 

given credit for the answers to questions 58 and 62.  The Civil Service Director indicated to staff 

that she could not make that change, as raw score results had been posted.   She advised staff to 

inform Rosier that he would need to complete an appeal form and go before the Commission for 

consideration of his appeal.  He subsequently provided appeal forms for each question as attached. 

On April 24, 2023, members of the Grand Prairie Audit Department personally reviewed the 

grading of all 70 promotional exams administered on April 11, 2023 and April 12, 2023 to identify 

any potential grading errors.  The only discrepancy between the original grading by the machine 

and the grading by the audit department was the discrepancy with regard to Fire Engineer Rosier’s 

test for questions 58 and 62.  No discrepancies in grading were found on any other test, and no 

discrepancies in grading were found on any other answer with regard to Fire Engineer Rosier’s 

test.  It should be noted that, in addition to the machine detecting “blanks” in response to questions 

58 and 62 on Rosier’s scantron, the machine also detected a “blank” on another scantron for the 

Driver/Engineer exam.  The review of that scantron confirmed the candidate had left all answers 

for that question blank on the scantron.  

GROUNDS OF APPEAL: 

Fire Engineer Rosier alleges his test was incorrectly graded.   

RELIEF SOUGHT: 

 

Re-grade the test for Fire Engineer Rosier using “B” as the answer for question 58 and “C” as the 

answer for question 62. 

71

Item 13.



72

Item 13.



73

Item 13.


	Top
	Item 1.	Minutes
	04-20-23 Meeting Minutes

	Item 2.	BC Appeal #36
	BC - Q36 -Appeal Agenda - Multiple Appeals
	BC Appeal - Q 36 - Singleton, R
	BC Appeal - Q 36 - Stevenson, J
	BC #36 pg 7

	Item 3.	BC Appeal #76
	BC - Q76 -Appeal Agenda - Singleton, R
	BC Appeal - Q 76 - Singleton, R
	BC #76 pg 70-71

	Item 4.	Captain #64
	Q64 -Appeal Agenda - Morris, B
	CAPT Appeal - Q 64 - Morris, B
	CAPT #64 pg 90-94

	Item 5.	Captain #79
	Q79 -Appeal Agenda - Payne, J
	CAPT Appeal - Q 79 - Payne, J
	CAPT #79 pg 144

	Item 6.	Captain #84
	Q84 -Appeal Agenda - Payne, J
	CAPT Appeal - Q 84 - Payne, J
	CAPT #84 pg 69
	CAPT #84 pg 199
	CAPT #84 pg 212
	CAPT #84 pg 225

	Item 7.	Driver Appeal #20
	Q20 -Appeal Agenda - Grondin, A
	Driver Appeal - Q 20 - Grondin, A
	DRIVER #20 pg 36-37
	DRIVER #20 pg 38

	Item 8.	LT Q20
	Q20 -Appeal Agenda - Rodgers, C
	LT Appeal - Q 20 - Rodgers, C
	LT #20 pg 35
	LT #20 pg 36

	Item 9.	LT Q 24
	Q24 -Appeal Agenda - Allen, K
	LT Appeal - Q 24 - Allen, K
	LT #24 pg 147
	LT #24 pg 149

	Item 10.	LT Q34
	Q34 -Appeal Agenda - Schroeder, A
	LT Appeal - Q 34 - Schroeder, A
	LT #34 pg 355-356

	Item 11.	LT Q63
	Q63 -Appeal Agenda - Rodgers, C
	LT Appeal - Q 63 - Rodgers, C
	LT Appeal - Q 63 - Allen, K (Rescinded)
	LT #63 pg 110-111

	Item 12.	LT Q73
	Q73 -Appeal Agenda - Gregory, B
	LT Appeal - Q 73 - Gregory, B
	LT #73 pg 37-40
	LT #73 pg 41

	Item 13.	Rosier Grading Appeal
	Municode - Promotional Appeal Template Grading
	LT Appeal - Q 58 - Rosier T
	LT Appeal - Q 62 - Rosier T

	Bottom

